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1) Statement of Jurisdiction 
 

The District Court lacked personal and subject matter 

jurisdiction in the removed case from State Superior Court and 

its orders are void. 

Appellate review is per 28 USC 1291, 28 USC 1294 and 28 

USC 2106. Review is of final rulings by the Federal District 

Court. See Appendix Exhibits 1-3, which are: Order on motion to 

dismiss … , dkt 38, entered January 29, 2013;  Order on motion 

for reconsideration, entered February 27, 2013, dkt 45; Order on 

motion for recusal, entered January 15, 2013, dkt 37.  

Review by the appellate court is also mandated under 28 

USC § 351 – Complaints, Section (a)  

“Any person alleging that a judge has engaged in 
conduct prejudicial to the effective and expeditious 
administration of the business of the courts, … may file 
with the clerk of the court of appeals for the circuit a 
written complaint containing a brief statement of the 
facts constituting such conduct.” 
Scheidler files this §351 complaint against Judge Ronald B. 

Leighton and Judge Marsha Peachman for violations of 

Scheidler's due process under the guise of court rule authority. 



 8 

2) Reservation of Rights and for Oral Argument. 
 

Scheidler reserves all rights, including RCW 2.48.210, 

RCW 2.48.180(6), RCW 18.130.180(7) -- which implicate Rules 

of Professional Conduct demanded of lawyers – these rules 

mandate lawyers apprise the court of any law or fact 

inadvertently omitted by Scheidler that is germane to this appeal, 

even those laws or facts adverse to their clients position. See 

RPC title 3.3 - Candor towards tribunal. See LCR 83.3 "attorneys 

shall comply with the following... Washington Rules of 

Professional Conduct." 

Additionally, under WA State Law, RCW 4.40.060 and 

RCW 4.44.090,  Scheidler retains his right that “issues of fact” 

are to be tried by a jury.  Clearly Scheidler’s Article 1, Section 

21, right to a jury to decide issues of fact is not available per the 

Federal Rules of Appellate procedure and therefore this 

proceeding cannot be deemed a due process proceeding, See 28 

USC 2072(b) “Such rules shall not abridge, enlarge or modify 

any substantive right.” Plaintiff’s right to a jury trial as to issues 

of fact is a substantial right and solely a matter for a jury. 
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Scheidler neither waives personal nor subject matter 

jurisdiction that is reserved to citizens under WA Const. Article. 

1, Section 1, which expressly and unambiguously states, "All 

political power is inherent in the people, and governments 

derive their just powers  from the consent of the governed, and 

are established to protect and maintain individual rights." The 

meaning of “just powers” as used in Article 1, Section 1, with 

respect to Scheidler’s “individual rights” is in the sole discretion 

of a jury and not government. Concurrent with the jury’s 

function under WA Const. Article 1, Section 1 is the mandate of 

Section 32, stating  'A frequent recurrence to fundamental 

principles essential to the security of individual right'. 

The WA State Lawyers involved in this case who owe a 

special duty to Scheidler as noted by the authorities cited above 

are:  M. Karlynn Haberly, WSBA # 8674; Alan Miles, WSBA # 

26961; Kay S. Slonim, WSBA # 12414; Eric Miller, WSBA # 

41040;  Ione George, WSBA # 18236; and Ronald B. Leighton, 

WSBA # 6800. 

Scheidler, throughout his brief/complaint, reserves these 

individual rights, objections, benefits, and waives none.  Other 
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rights due Scheidler may also apply and those are required to be 

noted by the lawyers as their oath demands. The appellate court 

must apply these laws in Scheidler’s best interest, re Art. 1, 

Sec.1, and in compliance with 28 USC 2072(b), supra.  

Oral Argument is requested to further the understanding of 

how government must meet these obligations for the preservation 

of a civilized society. 

3) Plaintiff's statement of the grievances presented for 
appellate review. 

 
A) Is Judge Leighton's orders a mess of contradictions and 

riddles that no person can understand? 
 

B) Do Judge Leighton’s orders conform to law? Or, does 
Leighton's orders violate 28 USC 2072(b); or violate 
Scheidler's WA State Constitutional and statutory rights 
under the guise of a court rule violation; or render WA 
Constitutional separations of powers irrelevant; or render 
WA Statutes providing Scheidler a jury trial irrelevant; or 
violate 28 USC 1446(b) re timeliness requirements; or 
violate 28 USC 1441(c)(2) for failing to remand those 
severed state actions that are not removable?   

 
C) Has Judge Leighton, by his order, in abrogation of WA 

Const. Article 1, Section 1's express language that all 
political power is reserved to the people for the protection 
of individual rights, created a new law that deprives WA 
citizens of their power over government by giving 
government defendants authority over citizens so as to 
deny Scheidler his “individual rights”? 
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D) Can lawyers serve two masters? Or, must lawyers serve 
citizens as their statutory oath, RCW 2.48.210, to the WA 
and US Constitution and rules of professional conduct 
demand, which are so important to maintain a civilized 
society? Or must lawyers serve government in their 
oppression of citizens? 

 
E) Has the Record on Review been corrupted by defendants’ 

counsels’ refusal to produce all the pleadings and papers  
that are required to be produced under law? Thereby 
corrupting these proceedings against Scheidler by inviting 
error and obstructing or delaying justice in violation of a 
citizens right, Article 1, Section 10, to be free from 
unnecessary delay? 
 

F) Is the vortex of Scheidler’s claims against government 
defendants based in defendants’ continuing fraud upon 
Scheidler specifically and those WA State citizens 
similarly situated?  And must the evidence – all the 
evidence -- provided by Scheidler be most strongly 
resolved against defendants and most supportive of 
Scheidler's claims? 

 
G) Must citizens be provided a forum to have their grievances 

heard or has Judge Leighton's failure to remand the 
nonremovable claims leave Scheidler without a forum to 
plead his grievances? 

 
H) Is Defendants’ removal action timely? 

 
I) Are Defendants’ counsels’ removal and immediate motion 

to dismiss a violation of CR 11 as being completely 
redundant and unnecessary? 
 

J) Are Defendants’ counsels’ removal action, their refusal to 
provide the "records" filed upon them a violation of 
professional conduct, RPC 3.3, and thereby a violation of 
the district court’s LCR 83.3 (lawyers must comply with 
WA RPC) and a violation of law -- RCW 2.48.210, RCW 
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18.130.180(7 and 13) as implicated by RCW 2.48.180(6) - 
WA law that pertains to the practice of law as being of the 
“highest standards of truth and honor”? 
 

K) Does Scheidler, being oppressed by these government 
defendants, have a statutory right to legal representation 
under RCW 2.48.210 that mandates legal assistance for 
oppressed citizens? 
 

L) Does Scheidler have a ‘disability’ right to legal 
representation under the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and or WA General Rule GR 33? 
 

M) Has Scheidler been unlawfully deprived of legal 
representation when WA attorney Jeffrey Steir refused 
representation for lack of obtaining a huge retainer? And 
Judge Leighton’s refusal to compel Jeffry Steir to take 
Scheidler’s case under a lawyers express duty of RCW 
2.48.210 to take such case without payment more evidence 
of prejudice? 
 

N) Has Judge Ronal B. Leighton practiced law while as Judge 
by rewriting Scheidler's disability request as a defacto 
forma pauperis motion? 
 

O) Has Scheidler pleaded his state administrative appeal, per 
RCW 34.05 Part V, sufficiently to make this claim 
nonremovable and not susceptible to a FRCP 12(b)(6) 
dismissal? 

 
P) Is Scheidler's RCW 7.56 state cause of action, the 

prosecution by an information, nonremovable under 
precedent and therefore must be remanded under 28 USC 
1441(c)(1)(B) and not susceptible to a FRCP 12(b)(6) 
dismissal? 

 
Q) Has Scheidler pleaded his other State causes of action – 

i.e., defendants fraud and the taking of Scheidler's property 
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as a consequence of that fraud -- sufficiently to defeat 
defendants' FRCP 12(b)(6) claims? 
 

R) Are Scheidler's federal causes of action intertwined with 
his state law claims and not removable under precedent 
case law? 
 

S) Can Scheidler amend his pleadings, or must counsels for 
defendant amend Scheidler’s pleading under their sworn 
duty to “TRUTH AND HONOR” so as to correct any 
'technicality' or substantial matter? 

 
T) Is Judge Leighton, in view of all the issues presented 

herein about which Leighton remains silent, prejudiced and 
in violation of his oath, 28 USC 453? 

4) Statement of the case briefly indicating the nature of the 
case, the course of proceedings, and the disposition below; 

a) Notice:  
 
 The complete pleadings, papers, exhibits and so forth that 

have been served upon all parties, and referenced herein and in 

Scheidler’s “original complaint Sections II-VII”, which 

demonstrate how defendants perpetrate and perpetuate a fraud 

upon retired/disabled citizens' have NOT been provided by 

defendants under their legal responsibility to do so. RCW 

34.05.566 mandates defendant Slonim provide the administrative 

record to the Superior Court - She has not!  
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[See Dkt 15 w/EX, page 10, line 15, which states "See exhibits 
4 and 5 to see how much evidence exist, which is being 
concealed by Defendant Slonim."] APPENDIX EXHIBIT 5 
 
Furthermore, Lawyers for defendants are duty-required to 

produce all the evidence. Their failure do produce this evidence 

are violations of RCW 2.48.210 (duty to the truth); 28 USC 

1446(a), 28 USC 1447(b) ‘the removing party shall file all 

pleadings served...’; District Court's letter November 20, 2012 to 

require defendants produce the record. See dkt 2. Scheidler has 

been prejudiced in these proceedings by defendants’ unlawful 

conduct to hide the very EVIDENCE that the court must construe 

in a manner most favorable to plaintiff's case in any order of 

dismissal.  

b) Nature of Scheidler's Grievance 
 

The nature of Scheidler’s controversy concerns an on-going 

crime -- the defrauding of Scheidler of his property, along with 

those WA State Citizens similarly situated. Defendants’ fraud 

denies Scheidler his Article 7, Section 10 rights. This is an issue 

of FACT and of CRIMINAL conduct.  
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The Article 7, Section 10 constitutional program at the 

vortex of this case is codified by WA statutes RCW 84.36.379-

389.  Defendants' fraud concerns misrepresenting the 

"conditional" placed upon the categories a-j, of RCW 

84.36.383(5).  The true "conditional" of RCW 383(5) states 

"plus all of the following items to the extent they are not 
included in or have been deducted from adjusted gross income:" 
 

By altering this "conditional", which is clearly apparent by 

comparing the "true" conditional of RCW 84.36.383(5) to 

Avery's version of this statutory conditional in the materials he 

disseminates,  categories a-j are improperly double counted and 

result in a false value for a persons disposable income. 

This fact is further explained in Scheidler's complaint 

[Dkt 1, Complaint beginning page 8]. For the Court's 

convenience Appendix Exhibit 6, contains a copy of Defendant 

Avery's 2008 application, listed in the complaint as EX A6. The 

'TABLE' noted on page 28 of Scheidler's complaint [dkt 1, 

Complaint at page 28]  illustrates the difference in results for 

Scheidler's calculated disposable income based upon controlling 

law and the proper 'conditional analysis of RCW 84.36.383(5) 
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with respect to categories a-j, versus Avery's home-grown 

scheme. The “handout” provided by the Dept of Revenue, also 

included in Appendix Exhibit 6, which is Scheidler's EX A8, 

complaint page 9, further demonstrates the “disinformation” by 

corrupting the "conditional" of RCW 84.36.383(5). These 

differences, on their own strength, are prima facie proof of a 

justiciable controversy of fact. See also Dkt 15, page 9 w/EX 1. 

This "Evidence” has been part of the record since 2008 and 

originates with defendant James Avery's published 

"qualifications and manner" of making claims 1 for the Article 7, 

Section 10 rights that he disseminates to citizens. This is noted 

herein as the 'application and/or its instructions.' This 

application, on its face - by simply comparing the language used 

in the application to the controlling law this application purports 

to satisfy-- is proof defendant Avery misstates the law and 

operates a fraud by disinformation perpetrated upon Scheidler 

and those similarly situated.   

                                                           
1 RCW 84.36.385(6) The department and each local assessor is hereby directed to publicize the 
qualifications and manner of making claims under RCW 84.36.381 through 84.36.389, through 
communications media, including such paid advertisements or notices as it deems appropriate. Notice of 
the qualifications, method of making applications, the penalties for not reporting a change in status, and 
availability of further information must be included on or with property tax statements and revaluation 
notices for all residential property including mobile homes, except rental properties. 



 17 

Defendants’ unlawful calculation scheme alters Scheidler's 

disposable income by double counting and by other absurd 

arithmetic operations. True "Disposable income" is material in 

obtaining the Art. 7 Section 10 right. Defendant Avery, then 

rules upon this corrupted value of "disposable income" so as to 

find Scheidler and those similarly situated as ‘ineligible’ for the 

constitutional right. [Hereafter the “grievance” or “complaint”] 

This homegrown scheme disseminated by Avery that contradicts 

controlling law in the way it double counts and other absurdities 

presents an issue of fact and first impression in WA Courts.  

Subject matter jurisdiction, ie., the facts about Avery’s 

scheme, are now in the hands of a WA State jury and not a judge. 

Id.: RCW 4.40.060 and 4.44.090 (issues of fact are for a jury) 

and Art. 1, Sec. 21 (A jury in civil trials). 

Defendants James Avery, Alan Miles, M. Karylnn Haberly, 

and Kay S. Slonim [hereafter simply defendants or government 

entities, or Avery, or Miles, or Haberly, or Slonim or some 

combination thereof] make up the government's 'chain of 

command' who have specific responsibilities to Scheidler in 

order to protect Scheidler from schemes as Avery’s. These 



 18 

Defendants’ only authorized conduct is defined by statute and or 

the common law. Whether or not these statutory/common law 

duties required of defendants are actually performed by them in 

the manner proscribed by statute present issues of fact and law. 

The Jury, not a judge, has subject matter jurisdiction as to the 

lawful conduct of defendants. 

The history of Scheidler's ordeal with these defendants is 

documented by the pleadings, papers, exhibits and so forth 

entered in superior court cases 08-2-02882-0 and 12-2-02161-1; 

as well as those documents, pleadings, papers and exhibits 

entered with the County Board of Equalization cause #462-10 to 

465-10; and the documents and papers entered with the Board of 

Tax Appeal [BoTA] cause #11-507-510.  The records of these 

proceedings are by law to be provided this court under 

defendants' legal responsibility. See NOTICE above.  These 

defendants have not provided the "whole record" to either the 

Superior Court or to the District Court in their removal action 

and are in breach of their statutory duties and have obstructed 

justice. Defendants’ obstruction presents an issue of fact. A Jury 

has subject matter jurisdiction as to whether or not Scheidler has 
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been prejudiced by defendants’ obstruction, not this court. See 

again the limitations upon courts under 28 USC 2072(b); also 

RCW 4.40.060 and RCW 4.44.090 (facts are for a jury). 

c) Scheidler's procedural history. 
 

Scheidler's procedural history is documented with facts and 

exhibits included or referenced in Scheidler's "Complaint for 

damages", cause 12-2-02161-1, filed Oct. 2, 2012, pages 4-31, 

w/EX. Particularly §II and III. See also dkt 1, Complaint pages 1 

et seq.; and dkt 1, Amended complaint, pages 1 et seq. 

Circa July 2008, Scheidler, who is retired due to disability, 

obtained the application and instructions from Kitsap County 

Assessor James Avery intending to apply for his Article 7, 

Section 10 right.  Because the application, on its face, misstates 

the law in how to calculate 'disposable income' Scheidler at once 

notified James Avery, via email, about the unlawful instructions 

and how Avery's instructions, if followed as written, would lead 

to an incorrect determination of disposable income. Furthermore 

the application requires applicants sign that the information 

collected by the application is truthful under penalty of perjury - 
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a conundrum without a solution given the facially faulty 

instructions. These correspondences are part of the record. This 

'record' defendants, by law, must provide - they have not 

provided these exhibits!  See Complaint at II and III v. the 

record before this court. See App. Exhibit 5, List of papers filed. 

James Avery did nothing!  As a consequence of Avery's 

blind-eye towards Scheidler, despite Avery's duty to the law, this 

forum proved futile to redress Scheidler's grievance. 

Circa 2008, over a period of a few months, Scheidler, via 

email, notified the Department of Revenue that Kitsap County 

was misleading applicants in the determination of income. These 

correspondences are part of the record that defendants, by law, 

must provide... which they have not! See again Complaint at II. 

The Dept of Revenue did nothing. Scheidler has been 

denied this forum to have his grievance addressed, 

Circa September 2008, Scheidler contacted the WA State 

Attorney General [AGO] via a citizen complaint submitted via 

the AGO web site. Scheidler made the same argument to the 

AGO as made earlier to both Avery and the Dept of Revenue.  

These correspondences are part of the record that defendants, by 
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law, must provide... which they have not! See again Complaint at 

II. 

The Attorney General did nothing. Scheidler has now been 

denied this forum to have his grievance addressed  

Circa 2008, Scheidler contacted his elected representatives, 

via email.  Senator Derek Kilmer, whose focus at the time was on 

balancing the State's budget…. he forwarded the email from 

Scheidler to the department of revenue for their response.  

The Dept of Revenue refused to respond.  

Senator Derek Kilmer did nothing more. Scheidler had 

been denied this forum to have his grievance addressed. 

Representative Jan Angel provided further evidence of the 

fraud by providing a Dept of Revenue handout that specifically 

instructs county assessors in how to respond to applicants who 

question the erroneous instructions.  This handout is Exhibit A8 

and part of the BOTA record and referenced in cause 12-2-

02161-1 [dkt 1, Complaint, page 9]; See also Appendix, EX 6 –

DOR handout. These correspondences are part of the record that 

defendants, by law, must provide... they have not! 
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Representative Jan Angel did nothing more. Scheidler 

had been denied this forum to have his grievance addressed. 

Circa, 2008, Scheidler, without any other alternative, 

having all forums for a redress of grievances foreclosed as stated 

above, filed, pro se, a declaratory/injunctive cause of action in 

Kitsap Superior Court asking the court to determine the validity 

of James Avery's home-grown calculation scheme in relation to 

the controlling law and the dilemma encountered in the required 

signature upon a document that misstates the law. This is cause 

number 08-2-02882-0 and is incorporated into the record by 

reference. See Dkt 1, Complaint page 9, Exhibit A8.  

Defendant Avery, through Kitsap’s prosecuting attorney, 

Alan Miles, filed a motion to dismiss Scheidler’s 

declaratory/Injunctive complaint arguing that Scheidler did not 

have standing to challenge the Assessor's erroneous application 

until he actually completes the application and then utilize the 

speedy administrative remedies that would be available under the 

administrative procedure act [APA].   

Defendant Haberly dismissed Scheidler's declaratory-

injunctive complaint on the basis that Scheidler had an adequate 
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and speedy administrative remedy once he completed the 

application.   

Scheidler has now been denied this forum to have his 

grievance addressed. 

Scheidler appealed Judge Haberly’s dismissal, which was 

affirmed by the Court of Appeals II based in Alan Miles’ 

assertion that Scheidler “failed to exhaust” the adequate, speedy 

administrative remedies that are available. 

Scheidler, to date, has been denied all forums in which to 

have his grievance redressed. 

Circa 2009, Scheidler, without any other option, and under 

duress, provided income information to the Assessor's staff who 

used it to compute Scheidler's disposable income according to 

the Assessor's homegrown calculation scheme as opposed to 

controlling law. The Assessor's results are in the record, Dkt 1, 

Complaint and Scheidler’s application signed under duress is 

noted in cause 12-2-02161-1 [dkt 1, Complaint, page 8, 

w/Exhibit A3 attached thereto].  

Scheidler signed these applications under duress.  Scheidler 

provided a written statement for the duress, which is noted as 
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Exhibit A4 in the list of exhibits provided to the BOTA and is in 

the record and referenced in cause 12-2-02161-1 [dkt 1, 

Complaint at III, EX A4, w/Exhibit A4, attached thereto].  

Scheidler’s applications were all miscalculated by the 

assessor. As a consequence Scheidler's Article 7, Section 10 

rights were improperly denied.  {Note: notwithstanding the 

assessors fraud, Scheidler was deemed qualified for 2010, albeit 

upon a false result of the Assessor's}. See Dkt 1, Complaint at 

pages 27-29 re the above.  

Circa 2009-2011, Scheidler proceeded to appeal the 

assessor’s fraud -- via the long ago argued ‘adequate and speedy 

administrative remedy’ as portrayed to Superior court and to the 

Court of Appeals by defendant Alan Miles.  

Scheidler first had to argue to the Kitsap County Board of 

Equalization [KCBoE] cause 462-10 to 465-10. See RCW 

84.36.385(5) - applicants appeal rights. 

The KCBoE did nothing… this forum was unavailable to 

Scheidler to address his grievance as the Board itself intimated it 

lack jurisdiction.   
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In the second course of the ‘speedy and adequate remedy’ 

of the APA, RCW 34.05, Scheidler argued the fraud to the BoTA 

cause 11-507 to 510. Scheidler also sought the assistance of 

counsel due to disability, which Defendant Kay Slonim, as chair 

of the BoTA, denied. 

Defendant Avery/Miles, in answer to Scheidler’s BoTA 

appeal, argued that the BoTA did not have jurisdiction and 

demanded the BoTA dismiss Scheidler’s appeal. ******This is a 

legal position of defendant Avery and Miles that is directly 

opposite to what these defendants argued to Haberly in cause 08-

2-02882-0 in order to secure a dismissal in that case. ******* 

Defendant Kay Slonim, chair of the Board of Tax 

Appeals, dismissed Scheidler’s appeal for lack of jurisdiction. 

See BoTA Order, signed by Kay Slonim, page 1. 

Scheidler has now been denied the very forum – the Admin. 

Proceedure Act -- Avery/Miles/Haberly had claimed, 2-years 

earlier, was the only "adequate and speedy remedy" available to 

address Scheidler's grievances. 

Scheidler, over the course of three years has been denied 

every forum. 
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Circa 2012, Scheidler filed a CR 60 motion (relief from 

judgment) in Kitsap Superior Court, and to reinstate his earlier 

declaratory/injunctive action, cause 08-2-02882-0. Defendant 

Haberly presided over this motion. Scheidler argued all possible 

forums proved futile, INCLUDING the APA forum defendants 

Avery, Miles, Haberly claimed, years earlier, as the only 'speedy 

and adequate' forum. Everything defendants Avery, Miles and 

Haberly claimed under their constitutional, and statutory 

obligations to uphold the US and WA constitutions, to conduct 

themselves with ‘truth and honor,’ to abide by rules of 

professional conduct, proved all to be a "fraud upon the court" as 

all forums for a redress of Scheidler's grievances have been 

foreclosed by these defendants. 

 Despite the self-evident truth in Scheidler's circumstances 

of being denied a forum to plead his grievance, Judge Haberly 

denied, with prejudice, Scheidler's CR 60 motion to reinstate 

cause 08-2-02882-0 and sanctioned Scheidler well over $3000. 

Scheidler’s subsequent motion for reconsideration was stricken 

under a bogus local court rule 59. [Note: LCRs must not conflict 

with the Supreme Court's Civil CR 59, which Kitsap's Local rule 
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does. See Dkt 1, Complaint at page 15, Sec. IV, Exhibit A30 

attached thereto.] 

Scheidler has once more been denied a forum to have his 

grievances addressed -- and SANCTIONED over $3000 in 

seeking a forum for a redress of grievances. 

October 2, 2012, after four years in seeking a forum for a 

redress of grievance Scheidler files cause 12-2-02161-1 under 

both his administrative appeal rights, if applicable, -- RCW 

34.05.530, and or in the alternative under RCW 34.05.534 citing 

violations of State and Federal Constitutions, State and Federal 

laws... including 42 USC 1981, 1983, 1985.  Dkt 1, Complaint. 

Scheidler also filed a GR 33 accommodation request for the 

assistance of counsel. Defendant Judge Karylnn Haberly, as 

presiding judge responsbile for GR 33 administrative matters, 

never ruled on Scheidler's disability request. 

With respect to Scheidler's complaint Defendant’s did not 

answer. 

October 23, 2012, Scheidler files his 1st amended complaint, 

incorporating all that is contained in his original complaint, 

(incorporation by reference in pleadings is governed by CR 
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10(c)) and adding causes of action under RCW 7.56 (prosecution 

by information), additional Federal and State constitutional 

provisions, and federal and state statutory provisions. Dkt 1, 

Complaint and Amended Complaint.  

Defendants did not answer. 

d) Scheidler’s history of proceedings in federal court. 
 

November 19, 2012, defendants Avery, Miles and Haberly 

notified Scheidler, that his State claims were removed from State 

Court to Federal District Court for the Western District of WA.  

Upon removal Scheidler, within 30-days, motioned the 

District Court for the following: Remand – under timeliness, 

jurisdiction, waiver, and abstention doctrines; the 

disqualification of Judge Leighton due to his past professional 

bias and his wife’s involvement with risk pool funds; for 

sanctions on attorneys George and Miller for cause. Scheidler 

also requested the assistance of counsel under GR 33 (a pending 

request in state court). And Scheidler re-filed for Trial by Jury, 

as was requested in state court. Defendants responded and 
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Scheidler replied. [See Dkts 9, 11, 13, 15, 18, 19, 21, 26, 27, 30, 

31, 32] 

Regarding the GR 33 Disability Accommodation: When the 

case was transferred to Federal Court, Scheidler's disability 

request filed with and undecided by defendant Judge Haberly, 

was re-filed with Federal Court. See Dkt 13. A GR 33 

accommodation request is an "ex parte" and confidential 

administrative matter.  Judge Leighton repleaded an "ex parte" 

administrative matter as a 'motion' so as to allow Defendants to 

raise objections, which include Judge Haberly -- who refused to 

rule as an administrative matter while in State Court. 

Furthermore, BoTA Chair Slonim denied the GR 33 

accommodation requested by Scheidler while the matter was 

before her agency. Defendant Slonim said the accommodation 

was unnecessary, citing Scheidler's writing capability in 

"pleading" his arguments. 

Defendants, never answering Scheidler's complaint, 

immediately motioned for FRCP 12(b) dismissal. Scheidler 

replied citing that a motion for remand has yet to be ruled upon. 

In addition the "whole record" has not yet been produced and 
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other points of law in opposition to dismissal. [Dkts 8, 15, 17, 

22, 35, 36, 

 Order: Judge Leighton DENIED all Scheidler’s motions. 

Judge Leighton made no comments about defendants breach in 

‘timeliness’ or ‘equitable waivers’ clearly implied by 

defendants’ “course of dealing”. Nor did Judge Leighton address 

jurisdiction; or defendants’ counsels’ violation in not producing 

the whole record. Nor did Judge Leighton address Scheidler’s 

"class certification" request. Judge Leighton also DENIED 

Scheidler's GR 33 accommodation request—which Leighton re-

pleaded as a 'motion'-- based upon some notion of "exceptional 

circumstances".  Judge Leighton also ruled that the district ‘court 

did not sit in review of state decisions.’ Judge Leighton also 

stated that Scheidler could not amend his complaint as the ‘court 

does sit in review of state decisions.’ These are all curious 

rulings as they require "perjuring or re-pleading" a GR 33 

accommodation request; acting with jurisdiction for the benefit 

of defendants yet claiming lack of jurisdiction in those matters 

pertaining to Scheidler; and setting his own ambiguous standard 

of “appeared to be” for his rulings despite the law requiring 
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“ambiguities” to be resolved in favor of REMAND. Judge 

Leighton APPROVED defendants FRCP 12(b)(6) dismissal with 

prejudice and foreclosed any opportunity for Scheidler to amend 

pleadings for want of jurisdiction and denied remand despite the 

courts claimed lack of jurisdiction.  These are inconsistencies of 

reasoning that cannot be reconciled without speculative logical 

gymnastics made by the reader – the language of the ruling itself 

is no help.  

Scheidler emailed both George and Miller demanding they 

reinstate cause 12-2-02161-1. Scheidler explained to George and 

Miller that Judge Leighton's Order indicated the court lacked 

jurisdiction. Both George and Miller claimed the case has been 

dismissed and refused to reinstate the case. Neither George nor 

Miller provided any explanation as to the orders language “the 

court does not sit in review of state decisions”. Dkt 42, Exhibit 

1. Also this email is found in Appendix EXHIBIT 7. 

Due to defendant's refusal to reinstate Scheidler's case and 

due to the uncertainties created by Judge Leighton's order, 

Scheidler motioned for LCR 7(h) reconsideration based in the 

court's incomprehensible and contradictory statements. [Dkt 42.] 
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Scheidler asked the court to remand that which it lacked 

jurisdiction or found ambiguous. The district court DENIED 

Scheidler’s motion.[Dkt 45]  

This appeal, concurrent with a complaint against Judge 

Leighton and Judge Peachman, are a consequence of these facts. 

5) Statement of facts relevant to the issues submitted for 
review with appropriate references to the record. 

 
a) It is a fact defendants' removal action from State 

Court to Federal court was untimely and pointless. Dkt 9, Dkt 

42. 

b) It is a fact that the subject matter at the vortex of 

Scheidler's controversies is intertwined with WA State Tax Laws 

and is not removable by defendants. Dkt 9, Dkt 42. 

c) It is a fact defendants' homegrown income calculation 

scheme (i.e., the ‘forms and instructions’ disseminated by Avery 

for the Article 1, Section 10 rights) materially misstates the law 

and consequently improperly disqualifies Scheidler from his 

rightful constitutional benefit. Brief to BoTA Document 4; Dkt 

1, Complaint, pages 1 et seq, Exhibit A6-1 attached thereto; Dkt 

15 pages 1-25, 15-1 
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d) It is a fact Scheidler's controversy involves his 

property – a tax has been unlawfully collected -- and substantial 

rights to a jury trial, all of which, Scheidler's rights, have been 

obstructed by these defendants through coercion, fraud, deceit, 

negligence and by obstructing justice in using court rules to deny 

these substantial rights. See Dkt 1, Complaint and Amended 

Complaint in the context of the whole record, which record 

includes the record before the WA State Board of Tax Appeals. 

e) It is a fact defendants' disinformation, i.e., "forms and 

instructions", perpetrated upon Scheidler demands personal 

performance by Scheidler – a false calculation of disposable 

income to be validated by Scheidler’s signature as ‘true’. 

Reference BOTA Brief Document 4; Dkt 1, Complaint; Dkt 15 

with Exhibits. 

f) It is a fact that defendant James Avery has no legal 

authority, either expressed or implied, to disseminate 

disinformation regarding the procedures explicitly described in 

RCW 84.36.383(5). 
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g) It is a self-evident fact Scheidler has been denied by 

defendants any and all forums in which to plead his injuries over 

a period in excess of 5 years.  

h) It is self-evident fact defendants have obstructed 

justice by concealing the full record, which by law, defendants 

must produce in the removal of Scheidler's case from State 

Court. See dkt 2, ‘produce the record’, dkt 9, motion to remand 

pages 2 et.seq.; dkt 15, pages 1 et.seq., with exhibits 1-6; dkt 42, 

reconsideration. 

i) It is a fact of law a jury is to decide factual 

contentions, not a judge. See dkt 1-4, jury request -state; dkt 19, 

jury request -federal. See WA Statutes RCW 4.40.060 and 

4.44.090 – jury to decided issues of fact.  

j) It is a fact government entities, i.e., defendants, have 

no authority to determine for themselves the extent of their 

authority. Under WA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 ... it is 

“citizens” in the form of a "JURY", Article 1, Section 21, who 

must determine the governments “just powers” with respect to 

Scheidler’s rights. What constitutes "just powers" is a factual 

issue and solely for a jury. 
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k) It is a fact of law, 28 USC 2072(b), that court rules 

shall not infringe upon substantial rights. 

l) It is a fact of law that attorneys practicing law in WA 

State have a statutory duty, a duty under court rules, and duties 

under rules of professional conduct absolutely necessary for a 

civilized society to “cure any issue of fact or law” by their 

responsibility to the whole truth and to the constitutions of the 

US and WA State. 

m) It is a fact of law that all defendants are bound by law 

in how they conduct their official duties with respect to 

Scheidler specifically and those similarly situated.  

n) It is a fact that one or more defendants have violated 

one or more of the following laws in dealing with Scheidler 

specifically and are subject to an RCW 7.56 Quo Warranto right 

of action: 

RCW 2.08.230 Uniform rules to be established; RCW 
2.48.210 Attorney oath; RCW 4.24.500 Good faith 
communication; RCW 4.96.010 Tortious conduct of local 
government official; RCW 9.38 False Representation re title; 
RCW 9.72 Perjury; RCW 9.73 Violating right of Privacy; 
RCW 9.81 Subversive activities; RCW 9.94A Criminal street 
gang; RCW 9.101 Criminal Street gang; RCW 9A.08 
Culpability; RCW 9A.28 Criminal attempt/Criminal 
conspiracy; RCW 9A.60 Fraud; RCW 9A.68 Bribery and 
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Corrupt influence; RCW 9A.72 Perjury and interference with 
official proceedings; RCW 9A.76 Rendering criminal 
assistance; RCW 9A.80.010 Abuse of Office; RCW 9A.76 
Rendering criminal assistance; RCW 9A.82 Criminal 
profiteering formerly Racketeering; RCW 9A.84 Public 
disturbance; RCW 10.14.030 Harassment; RCW 18.130.180 
Professional Misconduct; RCW 34.05 Part V Judicial Review 
and Civil Enforcement, RCW 42.20.040 – False report, RCW 
42.52 Ethics in public service. 

 
o) It is a fact that Scheidler has pleaded all the elements 

of a "properly pleaded complaint" either on the face of the 

complaint/amended complaint, or upon viewing the pleading's 

elements together with the evidence and exhibits itemized in 

Scheidler’s complaint; or when the whole record  is viewed in a 

light most favorable to meet a court rule requirement. [Dkt 1, 

Complaint at pages 8-19, Amended Complaint.] 

p) It is a fact that any defects in Scheidler’s pleadings 

must be corrected by defendants’ attorneys under their lawful 

obligation as quasi-judicial officers to the notion that litigation 

is a 'truth finding' process and they have a legal and professional 

requirement to provide fact and law that Scheidler may have 

overlooked or poorly pleaded.  

q) It is a fact, dismissal under a court rule violates due 

process as it precludes a public trial on issues of fact and renders 
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WA Constitution Article 1, Section 21 (right to a jury) 

irrelevant, renders WA Constitution Article 1, Section 10 

irrelevant (justice to be open and without unnecessary delay), as 

well as rendering RCW 7.56.010, RCW 7.56.020, (Individuals 

Quo Warranto right of action) and RCW 4.40.060 and RCW 

4.44.090 irrelevant (issues of fact are for a jury). 

r) It is a fact that defendants’ counsels’ conduct is a 

continuing effort to deny Scheidler’s due process rights and 

escape their unconstitutional taking of his property and the 

property of others.  

s) It is a fact given the entirety of the issues presented 

for review that must be resolved in Scheidler’s favor – including 

the misconduct of counsels under the “invited error” doctrine, 

more likely than not, shows Judge Leighton is either prejudice, 

incompetent or corrupt. Dkt 11, Dkt 40. 

6) Summary of the argument 
 

Defendants have injured Scheidler by unlawfully denying 

his WA State’s Article 7, Section 10 rights. An unlawful tax was 

collected as a consequence. Scheidler has further been denied, by 
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defendants, a forum before a jury, in which to plead these 

injuries.   

It is for a jury to apply the law to facts and these 

defendants have obstructed that fundamental right due Scheidler. 

See SOFIE v. FIBREBOARD CORP. 112 Wn.2d 636, 771 P.2d 

711, 780 P.2d 260 (1989), infra . 

It is self-evident from the historical record itself, 

Scheidler, from 2008 to present, has been denied any and all 

forums in which to plead his case before a jury by defendants' 

manipulation of court rules, their violation of statutory 

responsibilities, or the deliberate motives to hide evidence, 

engage in unnecessary legal tactics so as to deny Scheidler's due 

process and continue their fraud upon Scheidler and those 

similarly situated.  

The entire "chain of command -these defendants" despite 

their statutory duties to the contrary, have clearly violated, 

conspired and colluded in obstructing Scheidler's opportunity for 

justice – Scheidler’s right to ‘justice’ is a fundamental right and 

shall not be abridged by court rules. See 28 USC 2072(b) 

(citation omitted). 
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 Scheidler’s present circumstances are self-evident facts 

that either the WA legal system is corrupt and needs to be 

corrected, an issue of public importance, or these government 

defendants and their colleagues are working an injustice so as to 

deny a forum for Scheidler and thus preserve defendants' FRAUD 

upon citizens from being exposed. 

An on-going crime, this fraud, being perpetrated upon 

Scheidler specifically and those citizens similarly situated by 

government is a "STATE public interest" matter and as such 

demands STATE adjudication in which the “jury” has both 

personal and subject matter jurisdiction under WA Const. Article 

1, Section 1, Section 21, and Section 32. These rights retained by 

citizens for the benefit of "individual rights" shall not be 

infringed by government under any theory to the contrary.  

7) Argument: which must contain a succinct, clear, and 
accurate statement of the arguments made in the body of 
the brief, and which must not merely repeat the argument 
headings; 

a) Dismissal:   
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Judge Leighton's FRCP 12(b)(6) dismissal with prejudice 

without leave to amend is improper and runs counter to this 

circuit court’s holding in Hernandez v Denton cited below.  

This improper "dismissal", in the face of a record already 

corrupted by defendants, is factual evidence that Judge 

Leighton's use of a court rule to dismiss plaintiff's case in light 

of all of the wrongs committed by defendants and defendants' 

counsel is prejudiced against plaintiff and Leighton's sole intent 

is in saving an ongoing scheme by defendants and their counsels 

who have:  

• denied Scheidler any forum in which to plead his 
grievances; 

• who have unlawfully taken Scheidler's property;  
• who have concealed facts in violation of applicable law 

and even the courts own letter of November 20, 2012 
that required defendants produce all pleadings;  

• who are in violation of their Oath to the Truth, RCW 
2.48.210 and in violation of lawyers professional 
conduct to reveal all law and facts under RPC 3.3 and 
LCR 83.3. 

• and who have committed perjury in creating false 
records and other crimes against citizens. 

 
Until the merits are adjudged, this misconduct will 

continue. The court's blind-eye to this criminal conduct is 

uncivilized! 
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b) Standing: 
Scheidler’s property has been unlawfully taken by 

defendants’ unlawful conduct as Scheidler describes herein and 

in his Complaint (dkt 1, complaint). Scheidler has a right to sue 

under one or more of the following authorities: WA State Article 

1, Section 1, 3, 25, 32;  RCW 34.05 Part V; RCW 9.01.120; RCW 

7.56; 42 USC 1983, 1985, ... Scheidler may have other grounds 

to sue. If so, defendants' counsels, by law RCW 2.48.210 and by 

rules RPC 3.3, must divulge these additional grounds so "justice" 

is insured as that term -justice- is contemplated by WA State's 

Article 1, Section 1. In other words, governments "JUST 

POWERS" must be interpreted "to further, not frustrate" the 

intended purpose of the constitutional enactment. Bostain v. 

Food Express, Inc. 159 Wn. 2d. 700, 712 (2007). The intended 

purpose of Article 1 Section 1 and Section 32, expressely states 

government’s “just powers” are to maintain and secure 

individual rights. WA legislature also imposes upon lawyers by 

RCW 2.48.210, RCW 2.48.180, and Rules of Professional 

Conduct, the obligation to further not frustrate the search for the 

'truth' with respect to Scheidler's individual rights. 
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Scheidler’s right to sue has been obstructed and delayed by 

these defendants and by District Court Judge Leighton’s 

unlawful order to dismiss and not remand, which covers-up 

unlawful and unprofessional conduct by defendants and 

defendants' lawyers. 

c) Standard of Review: 
 

Judge Leighton’s “order” forecloses Scheidler’s 

constitutional rights and is reviewed ‘de novo’ and under the 

“strict scrutiny standard.”  

d) Jurisdiction:  
 
 The District Court lacks subject matter and personal 

jurisdiction under the following:  

i) Timeliness:  
The Removal action by defendants is UNTIMELY as shown 

herein and in Dkt. 9, Motion to Remand, and Dkt 42, Motion for 

Reconsideration. Timeliness is governed by 28 USC 1446(b)(1). 

ii) Subject Matter: 
 
 The District Court lacks SUBJECT matter requisites and 

deprives Scheidler of WA State Constitutional Rights that are of 
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substantial public importance and concern statutes, RCW 

84.36.383(5), which is a statute of first impression in State 

Courts. WA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 explicitly states 

governments derive their "just powers" from the governed to 

protect "individual rights". "Just Powers" claimed by governemnt 

defendants as applied to Scheidler is clearly the domain of the 

governed. This being the case Scheidler has standing to 

challenge "governments" claimed "powers" under RCW 7.56.020, 

Quo Warranto prosecution by information, and the "jury" under 

Article 1, Section 21 has jurisdiction of the facts under RCW 

4.40.060 and RCW 4.44.090. The District Court may not dismiss 

such claims as it renders these statutes and WA Constitution 

Article 1, Section 1, 21, 32 irrelevant. 

iii) Personal: 
 

Scheidler is actively prosecuting defendants under Quo 

Warranto information authorized by WA Constitution Article 1, 

Section 25, and codified by RCW 7.56. (See Dkt 1, Complaint: 

title page - 2; Amended complaint: title page -2). There is an on-

going crime, this continuing fraud, being perpetrated upon 
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Scheidler and those similarly situated by these government 

defendants and Scheidler has a ‘special interest’ in having this 

fraud remedied.  The "YOUNGER ABSTENTION" doctrine 

applies as RCW 7.56 prosecution by information is a state 

'criminal action' and defendants' removal will act as an 

"injunction" that stays the State's prosecution. 

Beyond an RCW 7.56 prosecution by information, Scheidler 

has constitutional standing conferring quasi-prosecutorial 

authority by WA Const. Article 1, Section 1. Again Younger 

abstention applies.  

e) Remand: 
The court must resolve any and all doubts and ambiguities 

in favor of REMAND.  

Judge Leighton’s orders, by the very language he uses, 

“appears to be suing” and "does not sit in review of state 

decisions" [Dkt 38, page 2 at C] is clearly language suggesting 

‘uncertainty’ and therefore must be resolved in favor of remand. 

8) appellant's contentions and the reasons for them, with 
citations to the authorities and parts of the record on 
which the appellant relies; and 
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This Court should declare there are facts for a jury and 

there are facts to hold Judge Leighton and Marsh Peachman in 

breach of their Oath for each of the following contentions and 

reason. 

A) Judge Leighton’s orders [dkt 38] are VOID. The District 
Court does not have jurisdiction and defendants failed to 
carry their burden to the alternate; Scheidler's case must 
be remanded to State Court! Review is de novo and under 
the “strict scrutiny” standard. 

 
Declare there are facts pleaded in this case which Judge 

Leighton has ignored, misconstrued, perjured, and resolved 

against plaintiff contrary to law. Judge Leighton under his own 

self-determined power under the courts self-created court rules, 

dismissed Scheidler's case prosecuting the unlawful conduct 

committed by WA State officials who violated Scheidler’s 

constitutional rights granted by Article 7, Section 10, Article 1, 

Section 10, and Article 1, Section 21. etc. See Orders, Dkt 38; 

See Dkt 1, Complaint at Section II and III, and Amended 

Complaint; Dkt 9; Dkt 15 w/EX; Dkt 42. 

This Court must apply the “strict scrutiny” standard of 

review. Leighton’s order is a “Government Act concerning 

government conduct” that denies Scheidler’s individual 
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constitutional rights, including Scheidler's Quo Warranto right of 

action. Strict scrutiny is required.  

Judge Leighton’s orders fail the “strict scrutiny” standard. 

His orders are void because the orders are contradictory, send 

mixed messages, and are without jurisdiction – based upon 

timeliness, equitable waivers, personal and subject matter. His 

orders are prejudicial and an abuse of power. His orders are in 

violation of law - 28 USC 453, and 2072(b), as Scheidler's 

substantive rights are at issue.  

“If the right is substantive, the statute prevails; if the right is 
procedural, the court rule prevails. (In re Marriage of Leslie , 90 
Wn. App. 796 , 806, 954 P.2d 330 (1998)). Generally, 
"[s]ubstantive law prescribes norms for societal conduct" and 
"thus creates, defines, and regulates primary rights." State v. 
Smith , 84 Wn.2d 498 , 501, 527 P.2d 674 (1974). Procedural 
law, in contrast, pertains "to the essentially mechanical 
operations of the courts by which substantive law, rights, and 
remedies are effectuated." Id. City of Spokane v. Ward 122 Wn. 
App. 40, 44 (2004) 
 

Leighton’s orders cannot be “justified by a compelling 

government interest … narrowly drawn to serve that interest.” R. 

A. V. v. St. Paul, 505 U. S. 377, 395. Scheidler argues these 

issues in Dkt 9, 15, 40, 42 with corresponding exhibits attached. 
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Judge Leighton in granting defendant’s motion to dismiss 

has made findings of fact in favor of defendants, in abrogation of 

statute and precedent law, and  in violation of WA Constitution 

Article 1, Section 21, RCW 4.40.060 and RCW 4.44.090, which 

delegates issues of fact to be tried by a jury – not a judge. See 

SOFIE v. FIBREBOARD CORP. 112 Wn.2d 636, 771 P.2d 

711, 780 P.2d 260 (1989), infra. 

A Jury has been requested in both State Court and Federal 

Court and is a substantial right of Scheidler’s.  

Most importantly a FRCP 12(B)(6) motion is unavailable to 

defendants in this case. WA State Lawyers by law are required to 

“cure” a faulty pro se pleading. A lawyer’s highest duty is to 

“truth and honor” and to the constitutions of the US and WA for 

the sake of a civilized society. See RCW 2.48.210 (Emphasis.) It 

is the lawyer that must correct all defects and present all fact and 

law germane to the issues so that justice may be done.  

“As an officer of the court, his duties are both private and 

public. Where the duties to his client to afford zealous 

representation conflict with his duties as an officer of the court 

to further the administration of justice, the private duty must 
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yield to the public duty. He therefore occupies what might be 

termed a "quasi-judicial office." Langen v Borkowski, 188 Wis. 

277, 301, 206 N.W. 181,190, 43 A.L.R. 622 (1925); Hoppe v. 

Klapperich, 224 Minn. 224, 28 N.W.2d 780 (1947);” FITE v. 

LEE 11 Wn. App. 21, 28 521 P.2d 964 [Apr. 1974] 

A lawyers failure to this duty to "truth and honor" by not 

curing defects of a material nature is to engage in deceit.  “The 

suppression of a material fact which a party is bound in good 

faith to disclose is equivalent to a false representation.” See  

OATES v. TAYLOR 31 Wn.2d 898 (1948). A lawyer’s failure 

to the law is to “invited error”. ““The original goal of the invited 

error doctrine was to "prohibit” a party from setting up an error 

at trial and then complaining of it on appeal." State v. Pam, 101 

Wn.2d 507, 511, 680 P.2d 762 (1984),” City of Seattle v. Patu 

147 Wn.2d 717 (2002). Scheidler cannot be penalized in having 

his complaint dismissed for what defendants’ counsels are 

required to do under law. Therefore a FRCP 12(b)(6) defense is 

“unavailable” to defendants in this case because the lawyers 

involved have a duty to insure all facts and law are addressed 
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which would in itself cure the ‘procedural defects’ Judge 

Leighton based his orders upon. 

Notwithstanding the above, “in motion to dismiss under 

Rule 12(b)(6) tests whether the plaintiff has properly stated a 

claim upon which relief could be granted, not whether the 

plaintiff will ultimately prevail on the merits.” Scheuer v. 

Rhodes, 416 U.S. 232, 236, 40 L. Ed. 2d 90, 94 S. Ct.1683 

(1974). “In ruling on a motion to dismiss, a court must construe 

all well-pleaded allegations of the complaint as true, and draw 

all reasonable inferences in favor of the plaintiff.” Id. “A motion 

to dismiss will not be granted unless it "appears beyond doubt 

that the plaintiff can prove no set of facts in support of his 

claims which would entitle him to relief.”" Conley v. Gibson, 

355 U.S 41, 45-46, 2 L. Ed. 2d 80, 78 S. Ct. 99 (1957) 

The "facts" at issue are those Scheidler cites in his 

complaint at Sections II and III (See Dkt 1, Complaint at II and 

III). The context in which those facts pertain is established by 

the ‘whole record’ … THIS WHOLE RECORD has been 

concealed by defendants in violation of their duty, as noted time 

and again herein and therefore Judge Leighton could not have 
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considered all the facts, as Scheuer requires, and his order to 

dismiss is void.  

Furthermore, Judge Leighton has not addressed Scheidler’s 

arguments raised in Dkts 9, 15, 40, 42, - timeliness, waiver, 

subject matter .... and such lack of reasoning must be taken as 

admission that there are no counter arguments to that of 

Scheidler. WA Supreme Court has stated, “the concealment of a 

fact which one is bound to disclose is the equivalent of an 

indirect representation that such fact does not exist..." IKEDA v. 

CURTIS 43 Wn. (2d) 229, 460  (1953). Judge Leighton's silence 

cannot SHOWN a COMPELLING REASON to dismiss 

Scheidler’s complaint or to absolve Defendants’ lawyers from 

their legal duty to “cure defects” that may be committed by 

Scheidler, a pro se. 

JURISDICTION: The District Court does not have subject 

matter jurisdiction according to the Rooker-Feldman doctrine as 

to "original jurisdiction” and or 28 USC § 1341 re Taxes by 

State. Scheidler's case concerns an appeal, under WA State's 

administrative procedure act [APA], regarding the unlawful 

assessment of a State Tax, with which all other claims are 
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inextricably related and thus not removable. [See Dkt 1, 

Complaint title page, which clearly states the cause of action 

being under RCW 34.05], See Dkt 9 and 15.  

In Railroad Comm'n v. Pullman Co., 312 U. S. 496 (1941), 

the Court held that, when a federal constitutional claim is 

premised on an unsettled question of state law, the federal court 

should stay its hand in order to provide the state courts an 

opportunity to settle the underlying state law question, and thus 

avoid the possibility of unnecessarily deciding a constitutional 

question. Harris County Comm'rs v. Moore - 420 U.S. 77, 83 

(1975). See the Federal “abstention doctrines”: See Younger 

abstention barring injunctions against state proceedings; See 

Pullman abstention where difficult issues of state law must be 

determined before a substantial federal question can be decided. 

Defendants have not overcome their burden justifying removal. 

Furthermore any ambiguities that exist in cases removed 

from State Court must be resolved in favor of REMAND. "A 

motion to remand is the proper procedure for challenging 

removal. 28 U.S.C. § 1447(c). The removal statute is strictly 

construed, and any doubt about the right of removal requires 
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resolution in favor of remand. Gaus v. Miles, Inc., 980 F.2d 564, 

566 (9th Cir. 1992). The presumption against removal means that 

“the defendant always has the burden of establishing that 

removal is proper.” Id." Moore-Thoms v. Alaska Airlines No. 

06-35923 D.C. No. CV-06-00652-BR (2009).  

Judge Leighton’s order to dismiss a pro se’s complaint 

without leave to amend runs counter to any notion of justice. 

The Ninth Circuit has added that before the district court  

can dismiss a pro se litigant's complaint pursuant to 28  U.S.C. § 

1915(d) [referring to FRCP 12(b)(6) dismissal], it must "draft a 

few sentences explaining to the plaintiff the deficiencies and 

allow the plaintiff to amend." Hernandez v. Denton, 861 F.2d 

1421, 1423 (9th Cir.1988). Dismissal without opportunity to 

amend is improper unless it "is absolutely clear that the 

deficiencies of the complaint could not be cured by amendment." 

Id.” John E. Moss, v. J.b. Williams 83 F.3d 428 (1996); "when 

addressing a pro se complaint, a district court should not dismiss 

without granting leave to amend at least once when a liberal 

reading of the complaint gives any indication that a valid claim 
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might be stated." Thompson v. Carter, 284 F.3d 411, 416 (2d 

Cir. 2002) 

Judge Leighton's dismissal of Scheidler's grievances under 

FRCP 12(b)(6) is improper because it violates the precedent case 

law and violates the provisions of 28 USC §2072. In other words, 

Judge Leighton used a court rule, contrary to law, contrary to the 

invited error doctrine, contrary to any notion of equity, and 

contrary to precedent, to deny Scheidler's substantive rights. 

B) Scheidler’s claims against government defendants are 
based in defendants’ fraud upon citizens, which 
continues! 

 
Declare there are facts showing that the "instructions" 

disseminated to Scheidler, and those other Senior/Disabled 

Citizens, by defendant James Avery, misstates controlling law, 

on its face, is discriminatory and will yield artificially high 

results versus controlling law - thus depriving Scheidler and 

those similarly situated from their WA State constitutional 

rights. Dkt 1, Complaint pages 5-31. 

C) Citizens must be provided a forum to have their 
grievances heard! 
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Declare that an improperly assessed tax along with the self-

evident procedural history chronicling government defendants’ 

orchestrated violation of Scheidler’s due process is a blatant 

disregard to the rights of citizens to a forum in which to seek a 

remedy.  “A State must provide procedural safeguards against an 

unlawful tax exaction because such exaction constitutes a 

deprivation of property under the Due Process Clause.” 

McKesson Corp. v. Div. of AB & T, 496 U.S. 18 (1990) 

D) Defendants’ removal action is untimely 
 

Declare there are facts that Defendants' removal action was 

untimely under the time constraints expressly defined in 28 USC 

1446(b), and made for an improper purpose.  

Based upon the filing dates for each possible "original 

action", Defendants' Notice of Removal was entered 1460-days 

from the date of Scheidler’s declaratory case, # 08-2-02882-0, 

which, if heard, would have prevented this long and arduous 

process and prevented the constitutional violations argued in that 

case. Or defendants’ removal action was entered 786 days after 

Scheidler’s appeal to the Kitsap County Board of Equalization 

arguing due process violations– which was a pointless exercise. 
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Or defendants’ removal action was entered 468 days after 

Scheidler files his Notice of Appeal to the BoTA, arguing due 

process violations—which if heard on the merits, may have 

prevented the need for additional legal proceedings. Or 

defendants’ remove action was entered 88 days after Scheidler’s 

motion to reopen cause 08-2-02882-0 due to defendant’s ‘Fraud 

upon the Court’ and due process violations… which, if heard, 

would have prevented this litigation.  And finally, defendants’ 

removal of cause 12-2-02161-1 was entered 48 days after the 

‘original’ complaint was filed in Kitsap Superior Court that 

again argued due process violations. Dkt 1, Complaint.  See Dkt 

9, Motion to Remand; and Dkt 15  

E) Defendants’ counsels removal action is a violation of 
RCW 2.48.210,  CR 11, and rules of professional conduct 
made to deprive Scheidler of his Article 1, Section 21 
‘jury’ rights and ‘delay his right to justice’ in violation of 
Article 1, Section 10 

 
Declare there are facts that Defendants' removal action in 

conjunction with their immediate FRCP 12(b) motion to dismiss 

is more likely than not a pointless act. The reason it is pointless 

is because there is a State equivalent to FRCP 12(b)(6) available 

to defendants. There is no substantive reason to remove a case 
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just to seek its dismissal. Defendants' removal action, is more 

likely than not made solely to delay, cover-up their crimes, 

deprive Scheidler’s jury trial and seek the advantage of a 

prejudiced judge who is willing to rule despite a corrupted 

record.  

"If the unfair tactical advantage demonstrated in the 
circumstances is permitted, Raymond will be denied a forum for 
his grievances. TRESWAY AERO, INC. v. SUPERIOR COURT, 
5 Cal. 3d 431, 487 P.2d 1211, 96 Cal. Rptr. 571 (1971)." 
RAYMOND v. FLEMING  24 Wn. App. 112, 600 P.2d 614 
(1979); FRENCH v. GABRIEL 116 Wn.2d 584 595 , 806 P.2d 
1234   (1991)   

 
"The right to jury trial in civil proceedings is protected solely by 
the Washington Constitution in article 1, section 21. … Because 
of the constitutional nature of the right to jury trial, litigants 
have a continued interest in it - As long as the cause of action 
continues to exist and the litigants have access to a jury, that 
right of access remains as long as the cause of action does. 
Otherwise, article 1, section 21 means nothing." SOFIE v. 
FIBREBOARD CORP. 112 Wn.2d 636, 771 P.2d 711, 780 P.2d 
260 (1989) 
ARTICLE 1, SECTION 10 ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE 
Justice in all cases shall be administered openly, and without 
unnecessary delay.  
  

F) Scheidler has a statutory right to legal representation and 
a 'disability right' to legal representation, and the 
assignment of counsel under court rule.  

 
Declare Scheidler, as member of the class of citizens being 

oppressed by government defendants' unlawful scheme, is more 
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likely than not entitled, by law, to legal representation under 

RCW 2.48.210's clear and unambiguous clause that mandates 

legal help for "oppressed" citizens and Federal Rule 23 – “Class 

Actions.”  

Declare Scheidler, a disabled individual, is more likely 

than not entitled to a suitable disability accommodation - the 

help of counsel to offset medical difficulties. 

In other words, Government defendants have deprived 

Scheidler of his legal rights to counsel and therefore "invite" the 

very circumstances that support the arguments they make to 

escape accountability that would not otherwise occur.  

G) Judge Ronal B. Leighton practiced law while as Judge. 
 

Declare there are facts that Judge Leighton, more likely 

than not, violated 28 USC 484 when he in essence practiced law 

by re-pleading Scheidler's GR 33 disability accommodation 

request as a request under Title 18 and or a court rule. Then upon 

Leighton’s own version of Scheidler’s request for counsel, 

denied the request under Title 18 or court rule as opposed to 

Scheidler’s ADA disability argument GR 33.  See Dkt 13 w/EX. 
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H) Scheidler pleaded his state administrative appeal 
sufficiently to defeat defendants' removal and FRCP 
12(b) claims of dismissal. 

 
Declare Scheidler, despite being prejudiced and 

disadvantaged in these proceedings, has nonetheless pleaded his 

state administrative appeal case in accordance with WA State's 

APA, RCW 34.05, sufficiently to defeat removal and defendants' 

FRCP 12(b) claims.  [See dkt 1, Complaint, page 4, line 3, 

beginning with “The remainder of this pleading is in the format 

defined by RCW 34.05.546”.] 

I) Scheidler pleaded his RCW 7.56 cause of action 
sufficiently to defeat defendants' removal and FRCP 
12(b) claims to dismiss. 

 
Declare Scheidler, despite being prejudiced and 

disadvantaged in these proceedings, has nonetheless pleaded his 

quo warranto information against defendants under RCW 7.56, 

sufficiently to defeat removal under Younger abstention. 

 "...in the Buck case, supra, at 313 U. S. 400, we stressed: 
"Federal injunctions against state criminal statutes, either in 
their entirety or with respect to their separate and distinct 
prohibitions, are not to be granted as a matter of course, even if 
such statutes are unconstitutional." Younger v. Harris  401 U.S. 
37 (1971) 
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The following authorities provide Scheidler's right of 

action. 

RCW 7.56.010 Against whom information may be filed. 
 
An information may be filed against any person or 

corporation in the following cases: 
     (1) When any person shall usurp, intrude upon, or 

unlawfully hold or exercise any public office or franchise within 
the state, or any office in any corporation created by the 
authority of the state. 

     (2) When any public officer shall have done or 
suffered any act, which, by the provisions of law, shall work a 
forfeiture of his or her office. 

 
RCW 7.56.020 Who may file. 
The information may be filed by the prosecuting attorney in 

the superior court of the proper county, upon his or her own 
relation, whenever he or she shall deem it his or her duty to do 
so, or shall be directed by the court or other competent authority, 
or by any other person on his or her own relation, whenever he 
or she claims an interest in the office, franchise, or corporation 
which is the subject of the information. 

 
"Shortly after the adoption of our state constitution, we 
addressed the standing of parties to pursue quo warranto actions 
in State ex rel. Smith v. Mills, 2 Wash. 566, 571-75, 27 P. 560 
(1891), where we first set forth guidelines for quo warranto 
actions which have been followed for more than 100 years. We 
noted: if the injury is one that is peculiar to the individual he has 
his right of action, but if it affects the whole community alike, 
the remedy is by proceedings by the state through its appointed 
agencies." STATE v. VERHAREN 136 Wn.2d 888 894 (1998) 
 
"If in the exercise of the powers with which they are clothed as 
ministers of justice they act with partiality, or maliciously, or 
corruptly, or arbitrarily, or oppressively, they may be called to 
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an account by impeachment and suspended or removed from 
office." Bradley v. Fisher, 80 U.S. 13 Wall. 335 335 (1871);  
 
For guidance in what constitutes "in the exercise of the powers" 
see also WA State Const. Article 1, SECTION 1 POLITICAL 
POWER. All political power is inherent in the people, and 
governments derive their just powers from the consent of the 
governed, and are established to protect and maintain 
individual rights." Also, Article 7, SECTION 28 OATH OF 
JUDGES. citation omitted. See also SECTION 32 
FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES. A frequent recurrence to 
fundamental principles is essential to the security of individual 
right and the perpetuity of free government."   

Dkt 1, complaint and amended complaint at page 1-2.  See 

Dkt 15, pages 21 §f in particular. 

J) Scheidler pleaded his Federal causes of action 
sufficiently to defeat defendants' FRCP 12(b) claims? 

 
Declare Scheidler, despite being prejudiced and 

disadvantaged in these proceedings, has nonetheless pleaded his 

cause of action against defendants under 42 USC 1981, 1983, 

1985, 1986, 1988, sufficiently to defeat defendants' FRCP 12(b) 

claims. See Complaint w/EX and Amended Complaint w/EX and 

those Exhibits the Complaint and Amended Complaint include by 

reference or as "offers of proof". * 

K) *Counsels for defendants, Miller and George, obstructed 
justice -- the Record on Review has been corrupted by 
defendants' counsels! 
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Declare there are facts that Attorneys Eric Miller and Ione 

George, more likely than not, altered and concealed material 

facts and law in violation of 28 USC 1447; RCW 2.48.210; in 

violation of their public duty, RCW 9A.80; in violation of their 

professional duty, RCW 2.48.180 and RCW 18.130.180; in 

violation of RCW 34.05.566 2; in violation of 28 USC 1446(a); in 

violation of 28 USC 1447(b); in violation of 42 USC 1986; in 

violation of their ethical duty RPC 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 8.4; and in 

defiance of the district court’s letter of Feb 20, 2013 [Dkt 2]. See 

also Dkt 15, page 10 et seq., EX 4-5 attached thereto.  

Because the record on review has been unlawfully altered, 

concealed, hidden by defendants’ counsels any judicial outcome 

would be based in a ‘fraud upon the court’ and void. “It is 

doubtless true that fraud vitiates everything tainted by it, even to 

the most solemn determinations of courts of justice, but like 

every other subject of judicial inquiry, it must be investigated in 

                                                           
2 Note: The BoTA records are to be provided to Superior Court by Defendant Kay Slonim under her 
statutory duty, RCW 34.05.566. Defendant Slonim has not provided these records and is in violation of her 
statutory duty and has obstructed Scheidler's right to a fair hearing.  These records constitute an offer of 
proof. “While the offer of proof was not a model of clarity, we are of the opinion that it adequately 
represented to the court the grounds on which counsel thought the evidence admissible. SEE MAD RIVER 
ORCHARD CO. v. KRACK CORP., 89 Wn.2d 535, 537, 573 P.2d 796 (1978). STATE v. THACKER 94 
Wn.2d 276, 616 P.2d 655 (1980) 
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the proper forum and by appropriate methods of procedure.” 

BATEY v. BATEY. 35 Wn.2d 791, 799    (1950) 

In other words, a fair and speedy hearing cannot occur 

given the lack of the full, whole, truthful record, which 

defendants, by law, are to provide, but have not. Scheidler has 

been prejudiced by defendant’s misconduct and his right to a fair 

adjudication of his grievances has been denied. 

The doctrine of “invited error” applies as defendants have 

in fact created the very issues, by their misconduct, which they 

argue for their benefit to the District Court immediately upon 

remove. See City of Seattle v. Patu 147 Wn.2d 717 (2002), 

supra.  

Defendants' counsels cannot serve two masters by their 

representation of these government bad-actor-defendants because 

LCR 83.3 requires attorneys follow RPC 1.2(d), RPC 3.1, RCW 

2.48.180(6), RCW 2.48.210, all of which demand lawyers serve 

the constitutions and laws of the United States and the State of 

WA ... NOT government bad-actors at the expense of citizens' 

constitutional rights.  In other words, counsels Miller and George 

have a statutory duty to protect Scheidler from the crimes of 
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defendants and their betrayal of that oath makes them as guilty 

as defendants themselves under 42 USC 1986. 

L) Judge Leighton is prejudiced against pro se, Scheidler. 
 

Scheidler includes all the preceding as if set fourth in full. 

Violations of due process requires an analysis of the entire 

process and not just a single event. Every element of this case 

must be scrutinized and deemed to further justice and not 

frustrate justice. 

"Due process of law guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment 
has regard to substance of right, and not to matters of form and 
procedure; … the entire course of proceedings, and not merely a 
single step, must be considered." Frank v. Mangum - 237 U.S. 
309 (1915) 

Declare Judge Leighton, more likely than not, is prejudiced 

against Scheidler, a pro se litigant, by granting defendants' FRCP 

12(b) claim, with prejudice, despite the continuing unresolved 

factual matter -- the fraud upon Senior/Disabled citizens; despite 

the misconduct of defendants and their counsels violations of 

law, court rules, court’s requests and common law duty to 

Scheidler and the judicial system itself. The facts discussed 

herein and taken as a whole is compelling evidence Judge 
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Leighton is bias and prejudice; Scheidler's due process has been 

violated. 

"We are also of the opinion that it is fundamental that a trial 
before a biased and prejudiced judge would constitute a denial of 
due process under the fourteenth amendment to the Federal 
constitution and Art. I, § 3, of our state constitution." STATE EX 
REL. McFERRAN v. STARR 32 Wn. (2d) 544, 550  (1949) 

9) A short conclusion stating the precise relief sought. 
 

Judge Leighton has been unlawfully harsh in utilizing a 

court rule to dismiss Scheidler's case. In contrast, Judge 

Leighton has been unlawfully lenient in turning a blind-eye to 

the unlawful and unprofessional conduct of defendants' lawyers.  

This Court, under the authority of 28 USC 1361, should 

compel the district court to prosecute defendants, under LCR 

83.3, for their obstruction of justice by not producing the 'whole 

record’ as their legal and professional duty requires so as to 

'invite error' through which they obtained the district court's 

rulings. 

Scheidler has been denied his constitutional rights, his 

statutory rights and he has a grievance against those who caused 

these harms.  His causes cannot be swept under the rug by a 

corrupt system or the corrupt individuals who resort to lies, 
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deceit, bias, favoritism, or by the application of court rules so as 

to deny substantive rights... 

Scheidler demands the following relief: 

1) Reverse Judge Leighton's orders to affirm defendants’ 

motions to dismiss. 

2) Reverse Judge Leighton's orders to deny: Scheidler's 

motion to Remand; class status certification; appointment of 

counsel; to disqualify Judge Leighton; to sanction defendants' 

counsels for cause. AND/OR 

3) To Remand for a jury trial to decide all issues of fact. 

AND/OR 

4) Allow Scheidler to amend his complaint and add Eric 

Miller and Ione George as defendants in a RCW 7.56 right of 

action. 

10) Certificate of compliance, if required by Rule 32(a)(7). 
 

I, William Scheidler, certify that this Informal Brief is of 

an expanded font of 14 point Times New Roman used by 

Microsoft Word and contains less than 14,000 words. 
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11) Affidavit 
I, William Scheidler, the undersigned, affirm that what I state 
herein and attach hereto is true in fact, and true to the best of my 
understanding of the laws and court rules that apply. 
 
 Signed this May 22, 2013, 

 

_______________________________ 
William Scheidler, pro per. 
1515 Lidstrom Pl. E. 
Port Orchard, Wa 98366 
360-769-8531 
billscheidler@wavecable.com 
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